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may also recommend that the Commis-
sion issue compulsory process in con-
nection with an investigation under
this section.

(b) Witnesses in investigations shall
have the rights set forth in §2.9 of the
Commission’s Rules of Practice.

§5.56 Disposition.

(a) Upon the conclusion of an inves-
tigation under this part, the General
Counsel shall forward to the Commis-
sion a summary of the facts disclosed
by the investigation along with a rec-
ommendation as to whether the Com-
mission should issue an order to show
cause pursuant to §5.57.

(b) When the former government em-
ployee involved is an attorney, the
General Counsel shall also recommend
whether the matter should be referred
to the disciplinary committee of the
bar(s) of which the attorney is a mem-
ber.

§5.57 Order to show cause.

(a) Upon a Commission determina-
tion that there exists reasonable cause
to believe a former government em-
ployee has violated 18 U.S.C. 207, the
Commission may issue an order requir-
ing the former employee to show cause
why sanctions should not be imposed.

(b) The show cause order shall con-
tain:

(1) The statutory provisions alleged
to have been violated and a clear and
concise description of the acts of the
former employee that are alleged to
constitute the violation;

(2) Notice of the respondent’s right to
submit an answer and request a hear-
ing, and the time and manner in which
the request is to be made; and

(3) A statement of the sanctions that
may be imposed pursuant to §5.67 of
this part.

(c) Subsequent to the issuance of an
order to show cause, any communica-
tions to or from the Commission or any
member of the Commission shall be
governed by the ex parte provisions of
§4.7 of the Commission’s Rules of Prac-
tice. 16 CFR 4.7.

§5.58 Answer and request for a hear-
ing.

(a) An answer and request for a hear-

ing must be filed with the Secretary of

§5.59

the Commission within thirty (30) days
after service of the order to show
cause.

(b) In the absence of good cause
shown, failure to file an answer and re-
quest for a hearing within the specified
time limit:

(1) Will be deemed a waiver of the re-
spondent’s right to contest the allega-
tions of the show cause order or re-
quest a hearing and

(2) Shall authorize the Commission
to find the facts to be as alleged in the
show cause order and enter a final deci-
sion providing for the imposition of
such sanctions specified in §5.67 as the
Commission deems appropriate.

(c) An answer shall contain (1) a con-
cise statement of the facts or law con-
stituting each ground of defense and (2)
specific admission, denial, or expla-
nation of each fact alleged in the show
cause order or, if the respondent is
without knowledge thereof, a state-
ment to that effect. Any allegations of
a complaint not answered in this man-
ner will be deemed admitted.

(d) Hearings shall be deemed waived
as to any facts in the show cause order
that are specifically admitted or
deemed to be admitted as a result of re-
spondent’s failure to deny them. Those
portions of respondent’s answer, to-
gether with the show cause order, will
provide a record basis for initial deci-
sion by the Administrative Law Judge
or for final decision by the Commis-
sion.

(e) If all material factual allegations
of the show cause order are specifically
admitted or have been deemed admit-
ted in accordance with paragraph (c) of
this section, the Commission will de-
cide the matter on the basis of the alle-
gations set forth in the show cause
order and respondent’s answer.

§5.59 Presiding official.

(a) Upon the receipt of an answer and
request for a hearing, the Secretary
shall refer the matter to the Chief Ad-
ministrative Law Judge, who shall ap-
point an Administrative Law Judge to
preside over the hearing and shall no-
tify the respondent and the General
Counsel as to the person selected.

(b) The powers and duties of the pre-
siding official shall be as set forth in
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§3.42(b) through (h) of the Commis-
sion’s Rules of Practice.

§5.60 Scheduling of hearing.

The presiding official shall fix the
date, time and place of the hearing.
The hearing shall not be scheduled ear-
lier than fifteen days after receipt of
the respondent’s answer and request
for a hearing. In fixing the time, date
and place of the hearing, the presiding
official shall give due regard to the re-
spondent’s need for adequate time to
prepare a defense and an expeditious
resolution of allegations that may be
damaging to his or her reputation.

§5.61 Prehearing procedures; motions;
interlocutory appeals; summary de-
cision; discovery; compulsory proc-
ess.

Because of the nature of the issues
involved in proceedings under this
part, the Commission anticipates that
extensive motions, prehearing pro-
ceedings and discovery will not be re-
quired in most cases. For this reason,
detailed procedures will not be estab-
lished under this part. However, to the
extent deemed warranted by the pre-
siding official, prehearing conferences,
motions, interlocutory appeals, sum-
mary decisions, discovery and compul-
sory process shall be permitted and
shall be governed, where appropriate,
by the provisions set forth in subparts
C and D, part 3, of the Commission’s
Rules of Practice.

§5.62

In any hearing under this subpart,
the respondent shall have the right:

(a) To be represented by counsel;

(b) To present and cross-examine wit-
nesses and submit evidence;

(c) To present objections, motions,
and arguments, oral or written; and

(d) To obtain a transcript of the pro-
ceedings on request.

Hearing rights of respondent.

§5.63 Evidence; transcript; in camera
orders; proposed findings of fact
and conclusions of law.

Sections 3.43, 3.44, 3.45, and 3.46 of the
Commission’s Rules of Practice shall
govern, respectively, the receipt and
objections to admissibility of evidence,
the transcript of the hearing, in camera
orders and the submission and consid-
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eration of proposed findings of fact and
conclusions of law except that (a) a
copy of the hearing transcript shall be
provided the respondent; and (b) the
Commission has the burden of estab-
lishing, by a preponderance of the evi-
dence on the record as a whole, the al-
legations stated in the order to show
cause.

§5.64 Initial decision.

Section 3.51 of the Commission’s
Rules of Practice shall govern the ini-
tial decision in proceedings under this
subpart, except that the determination
of the Administrative Law Judge must
be supported by a preponderance of the
evidence.

§5.65 Review of initial decision.

Appeals from the initial decision of
the Administrative Law Judge or re-
view by the Commission in the absence
of an appeal shall be governed by §§3.52
and 3.53 of the Commission’s Rules of
Practice except that oral arguments
shall be nonpublic subject to the excep-
tions stated in §3.52 of this part.

§5.66 Commission decision and recon-
sideration.

The Commission’s decision and any
reconsideration or reopening of the
proceeding shall be governed by §§2.51,
3.54, 3.55, 3.71 and 3.72 of the Commis-
sion’s Rules of Practice, except that (a)
if the initial decision is modified or re-
versed, the Commission shall specify
such findings of fact and conclusions of
law as are different from those of the
presiding official; and (b) references
therein to ‘‘court of appeals’ shall be
deemed for purposes of proceedings
under this part to refer to ‘‘district
court.”

§5.67 Sanctions.

In the case of any respondent who
fails to request a hearing after receiv-
ing adequate notice of the allegations
pursuant to §5.57 or who is found in the
Commission’s final decision to have
violated 18 U.S.C. 207 (a), (b), or (c), the
Commission may order such discipli-
nary action as it deems warranted, in-
cluding:

(a) Reprimand;
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